
Minutes of the May 27, 2009 Planning Commission 
 
Meeting called to order at 7:00 P.M. by Chairman Toby Gearhart.  Planning Commission members 
Margaret Haven, Jeff Garrett, and Martin Sokolich were present.  The following were also in 
attendance:  Kathy Smith, Town Commissioner; Missy Vanskiver, Asst. Clerk; Jack Hall, Town 
Attorney; Nancy Gearhart; Archie Carroll; Anne Ogletree; Betty Jean Mumford; Allison Dungan, 
Caroline Co. Planning & Codes; Christopher Bower, Caroline Co. Humane Society; Sharon Dennis, 
Caroline Co. Humane Society; Steve Vaughn, Caroline Co. Humane Society; Mike Peter, Mike’s 
Custom Homes; Ernest Sparrow; Howard Johnson, Hill Mgmt; and Brienne Garland, To The Pointe.  
 
 
Approval of the Minutes 
A motion for approval of the April minutes was made by Margaret, seconded by Martin, 
unanimously approved. 
 
Allison Dungan of Caroline Co. Planning and Codes provided an overview of the Memorandum of 
Understanding.  Caroline Co. would like to enter into an MOU with the municipalities within the 
Upper Choptank and Tuckahoe Creek Watershed.  Before reading the MOU in its entirety, Allison 
summarized the Watershed Characterization as a document to be used in planning purposes to make 
educated planning decisions.  Allison said she is looking for a positive recommendation of the plan 
to take to the County Commissioners.  Toby explained the process, stating the Planning Commission 
would recommend approval to the Town Commissioners, who would then forward it to the County 
Commissioners.  He asked if there were any questions; Jack Hall stated he has read the document, 
but it wasn’t clear to him what was driving the MOU adoption.  Allison stated Kathleen Freeman 
had written a grant proposal, which was funded, and part of the deliverables in that proposal was the 
completion and signing of the MOU.  There was some discussion and Jack said that he recommends 
that the Commissioners of Ridgely add an addendum stating they would not be binding themselves 
to take any action, and no public hearing would be required.   
 
Reports and Updates 
Building Permit Report – Missy stated are a few new building permit applications included on the 
report, and asked who would be signing the permits as the Zoning Administrator.  It was indicated 
that Kathy Smith would be signing permits as the Zoning Administrator. 
Municipal Capital Projects – Missy provided an update on the various municipal projects:  the spray 
field upgrade is almost completed, the water storage tank is still pending, Rails to Trails project is 
out to bid, no new info on the Public Safety Building, the Railroad Station Renovation grant has 
been awarded, the Telephone Building has been completed, and there is nothing new to report 
concerning Inflow & Infiltration (I&I). 
 
Kathy Smith stated that she was going to try to get a meeting on June 3rd to discuss Rails to Trails 
and the Railroad Station projects with JOK Walsh, Sue Simmons, and Cindy Todd. 
 
Toby said there had been a question from Archie Carroll regarding when sewer allocation would be 
valid for development purposes.  Kathy stated it could be approximately eight months due to serious 
issues.  She said the Commissioners think the project should be fixed, it was the engineer’s mistake, 
but revised plans have yet to be presented. 
 
 



Old Business 
Cow Barn Property – Ms. Anne Ogletree stated that she would be representing Mr. Archie Carroll 
and they would like to work with the town to build the best project they can.  She also stated that Mr. 
Carroll has authorized her to assist in any way she can to assist Jack Hall and the Commissioners, as 
far as the Cow Barn property is concerned.  There was some discussion, and Jack Hall asked if there 
was a proposal.  Ms. Ogletree said that she saw from Mr. Hall’s letter his concerns about the validity 
of a floating zone and changing the underlying zoning.  Ms. Ogletree would like to research that 
issue and present it to Mr. Hall so he can present it to the Commissioners.  Jack Hall said that the 
question is if there is a floating zone that would accommodate what is being proposed.  He also said, 
regarding floating zones, the Planning Commission makes recommendations as to what would apply. 
 
Ridgeway Estates – Mike Peter met with the Planning Commission to discuss homes in Ridgeway 
Estates.  There was discussion about proposed and existing home styles in Ridgeway.  Toby stated 
that the Planning Commission had questions about the mix of homes in Ridgeway.  He stated that 
when the project was originally approved, there were decisions made about how many homes would 
have side-facing garages, the number of single-story homes, etc.  Now the Planning Commission 
wants to know what kind of mix Mike has in mind and what’s coming down the pike.  Mike said that 
if somebody comes in and selects one of the models, that is what he is going to build; he is unable to 
build a bunch of spec houses and he can’t tell what is coming down the pike.  Most of the homes 
have to have a front-load garage because there is not enough of a turning radius.  Some prospective 
buyers present their own plans to Mike.  There was some discussion.  Missy asked if it would be ok 
to approve the designs that have already been submitted.  Toby said that each house will have to 
receive approval from the Planning Commission. 
 
Eastern Shore Overhead Doors – Betty Jean Mumford asked if any action had been taken regarding 
this property.  She also asked how they ever obtained a permit to open.  There was some discussion, 
including enforcement.  Toby asked if it would be (Code Administrator) Cary’s responsibility. Missy 
stated that if it is, he needs to know what ESOD is violating. She asked if the Zoning Administrator 
would address the violation, if it is a violation of the town’s Zoning Ordinance.  Toby stated that the 
town doesn’t have a Zoning Administrator.  Missy asked if the Commissioners should send a letter. 
Kathy said yes and asked that Cary contact her because she would like to discuss other issues with 
him.  Toby suggested that Cary be the enforcement because it dovetails into what he does.   
 
207 Park Avenue – Cary has received court dates for each of the citations issued to Ms. Raikes.   
 
 
New Business 
Building Permit – Caroline County Humane Society – A building permit application and plans for a 
10x30 addition were reviewed, and a motion to approve the permit was made by Jeff, seconded by 
Margaret, unanimously approved.   
 
Building Permit - Dance Studio at 2 N. Maple Avenue – Howard Johnson of Hill Management and 
Brienne Garland of To The Pointe were in attendance to discuss the relocation of the To The Pointe 
dance studio to 2 N. Maple Avenue.  Plans were presented and after some discussion, a motion to 
approve the plans was made by Martin, seconded by Jeff, unanimously approved. 
 
Building Permit – 505 Central Avenue – Ernie Sparrow presented plans for an addition to his home 
at 505 Central Avenue.  There was discussion about the building permit and plans for the addition, 



as well as the future of the accessory building located behind the house.  A motion to approve the 
permit application was made by Martin, seconded by Jeff, unanimously approved.   
 
Accessory Buildings over/under 200 square feet – Toby asked what needed to be done since the 
building permit is also related to the accessory building issue.  Missy said that was her question for 
both Toby and Jack.  Currently, the maximum size permitted without requiring inspections is 160 sq. 
ft.  The setbacks are also different for an accessory building over 160 sq. ft.  Missy said it is her 
understanding that the maximum size has always been policy, and is not clearly stated in either the 
Zoning Ordinance or the Design Guidelines.  As far as the building code adopted by the town, as 
well as for Caroline County, and all other towns in the County, only accessory structures over 200 
sq. ft. require inspections.  Jack Hall said he would take a look at the issue.  Missy asked if the 3 ft. 
setbacks would remain the same if the maximum size of an accessory structure not requiring 
inspections were increased to 200 sq. ft.   
 
208 Maryland Avenue – Missy stated that she asked Thad Hoy (new owner of the property) for a 
scope of work to be performed at that location.  Based on the information received, a permit is not 
required, but Missy just wanted to make the Planning Commission aware of the work to be done. 
 
308 Caroline Avenue – A letter had been received from Ty Butler regarding demolition of 308 
Caroline Avenue.  Toby referenced some previous demolitions in the 200 block of Caroline Avenue.  
There has been no demolition permit submitted.  Toby asked if the Planning Commission could go 
take a look at 308 Caroline Avenue.  Jeff asked who determines the difference between giving a 
permit to tear this house down due to a fire and the other fire damaged property (207 Park Avenue).  
Toby said that the house at 207 Park Avenue is not a structural threat to the community and could 
probably be repaired for approximately $50,000.  The fire damaged house at 206 Caroline Ave was a 
hazard.  Jeff said he would like to look at the property up for demolition before a decision is made. 
   
Comprehensive Plan – Toby said that at the last Commissioners’ meeting it was made clear that the 
Ridgely Park project will not be happening.  He said that language in the Comprehensive plan 
pertaining to the North Planning District needs to be considered.  Toby reviewed options to consider.  
There was some discussion.  Shane’s suggestion, to use the phrase ‘preferred development pattern’ 
regarding the area in which Ridgely Park had been planned, was accepted.  It was also suggested by 
the Planning Commission to emphasize alleys and common storm water management facilities. 
 
Toby stated the Planning Commission should consider recommending to the Commissioners that the 
Ridgely Park DRRA be declared null and void.  Jack stated that one of the issues he needs to discuss 
with the Commissioners is that there was a payment due from Ridgely Park on/around May 24th.  He 
said that possibly, he should write to Ridgely Park stating that payment is expected if they have any 
expectancy of moving forward.  Toby asked Jack if there is any reason not to declare the DRRA null 
and void; Jack said no.  A motion to recommend to the Commissioners that the Ridgely Park DRRA 
be deemed null and void was made by Martin, seconded by Jeff, unanimously approved. 
 
 
Commission Roundtable Discussion 
Jack Hall referenced and email he received about enlarging the Historic District.  He said there is no 
record that a Historic District was ever created.  Toby said the Ridgely House is the Historic District, 
which was created by Ordinance around 1998.  Jack said perhaps the registration of the property was 



done by Joe Quinn, as the owner of the property, since the town didn’t own the property until later.  
There was additional discussion. 
 
Martin wanted to ask Jack some procedural questions.  Martin mentioned a written notice to proceed 
and recommended possibly attaching certain pertinent documents to the minutes.  There was some 
discussion. 
 
Nancy stated that while Cyber Ridge was being considered, the town ran into a problem regarding 
who was responsible for paying the town attorney’s bill.  Now there will be another attorney 
working with the town’s attorney on the Cow Barn project.  Toby stated he would say that the 
developer pays.  Nancy asked if Mr. Carroll understood that.  Toby suggested that the town’s new 
Zoning Administrator contact Mr. Carroll.  There was some discussion.  Kathy said there needs to be 
some sort of a document.  Nancy said that Jack Hall stated that he would send a letter stating that 
would be the first order of business.   
 
Missy said that the county would prefer to review the town’s Comprehensive Plan on July 8th and 
asked if that would be ok.  It was agreed that would be fine.   
 
Adjournment 
At 8:40, a motion to adjourn was made by Jeff, seconded by Martin, unanimously approved. 
 
 
 

Sincerely, 
 
 
 

Missy Vanskiver 
Asst. Clerk 

 
 
 
 
   


